10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

STATE OF NEW JERSEY

CASINO CONTROL COMMISSION

PUBLIC MEETING NO. 26-05-13

Wednesday, May 13, 2026
Atlantic City Commission Offices
Joseph P. Lordi Public Meeting Room - First Floor
Tennessee Avenue and Boardwalk
Atlantic City, New Jersey 08401

10:30 a.m. to 11:56 a.m.

Certified Court Reporter: M. Darlene Engel

ROSENBERG & ASSOCIATES, INC.
CERTIFIED COURT REPORTERS & VIDEOGRAPHERS
23 Vreeland Road, Suite 204
Florham Park, New Jersey 07932

(973) 228-9100 www.rosenbergassociates.com




10

11

BEFORE:

CASINO CONTROL COMMISSION:
JAMES T. PLOUSIS, CHAIR
JOYCE MOLLINEAUX, VICE CHAIR
MARIO C. FORMICA, COMMISSIONER

PRESENT FOR THE CASINO CONTROL COMMISSION:
DARYL W. NANCE, MANAGER/OPRA CUSTODIAN
OFFICE OF THE GENERAL COUNSEL:
DIANNA W. FAUNTLEROY, GENERAL COUNSEL/EXECUTIVE
SECRETARY
TERESA M. PIMPINELLI, SENIOR COUNSEL

OFFICE OF REGULATORY AFFAIRS:
HARRY GIVAS, MANAGER
DIVISION OF GAMING ENFORCEMENT:
MARY JO FLAHERTY, INTERIM DIRECTOR
DEPUTY ATTORNEYS GENERAL
JOCELYN R. FIETKIEWICZ

APPEARANCE S Continued:
ITEM NO. 15 DIANNA W. FAUNTLEROY, GENERAL COUNSEL
PAULINA R. DeARAUJO, DEPUTY ATTORNEY
GENERAL
BROWNSTEIN HYATT FARBER SCHRECK
PACIFICO S. AGNELLINI, ESQ.
FOR: BOARDWALK REGENCY, LLC

ITEM NO. 16 DIANNA W. FAUNTLEROY, GENERAL COUNSEL
PAULINA R. DeARAUJO, DEPUTY ATTORNEY
GENERAL
BROWNSTEIN HYATT FARBER SCHRECK
PACIFICO S. AGNELLINI, ESQ.
FOR: TROPICANA ATLANTIC CITY CORP
ITEM NO. 17 DIANNA W. FAUNTLEROY, GENERAL COUNSEL
PAULINA R. DeARAUJO, DEPUTY ATTORNEY
GENERAL
FOX ROTHSCHILD, LLP
CJ FISHER, ESQ.
FOR: MARINA DISTRICT DEVELOPMENT
COMPANY, LLC AND MGM RESORTS
INTERNATIONAL

12 ELLEN D. FERTAKOS ITEM NO. 18 DIANNA W. FAUNTLEROY, GENERAL COUNSEL

PAULINA R. DeARAUJO 14 PAULINA R. DeARAUJO, DEPUTY ATTORNEY
13 GENERAL

15 BROWNSTEIN HYATT FARBER SCHRECK
14 PACIFICO S. AGNELLINI, ESQ.
15 16 FOR: GOLDEN NUGGET ATLANTIC CITY, LLC
16 17 ITEM NO. 19 DIANNA W. FAUNTLEROY, GENERAL COUNSEL
17 PAULINA R. DeARAUIO, DEPUTY ATTORNEY
18 18 GENERAL
NANETTE HORNER, VICE PRESIDENT, GENERAL
19 19 COUNSEL
20 FOR: BOARDWALK 1000, LLC
21 20
22 21
23 %g
24 2
25 25
3
1 APPEARANCES: 1

ITEM NO. 11 DIANNA W. FAUNTLEROY, GENERAL COUNSEL

PAULINA R. DeARAUJO, DEPUTY ATTORNEY
GENERAL

BROWNSTEIN HYATT FARBER SCHRECK
PACIFICO S. AGNELLINI, ESQ.
FOR: MARINA DISTRICT DEVELOPMENT
COMPANY, LLC AND MGM RESORTS
INTERNATIONAL

ITEM NO. 12 DIANNA W. FAUNTLEROY, GENERAL COUNSEL
ELLEN D. FERTAKOS, DEPUTY ATTORNEY
GENERAL
FOX ROTHSCHILD, LLP
CJ FISHER, ESQ.
FOR: AC OCEAN WALK, LLC
ITEM NO. 13 DIANNA W. FAUNTLEROY, GENERAL COUNSEL
PAULINA R. DeARAUJO, DEPUTY ATTORNEY
GENERAL
BROWNSTEIN HYATT FARBER SCHRECK
PACIFICO S. AGNELLINI, ESQ.
FOR: CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT, INC.,
HARRAH'S ATLANTIC CITY OPERATING
COMPANY, LLC, BOARDWALK REGENCY, LLC,

AGENDA
PUBLIC MEETING NO. 26-05-13
MAY 13,2026, 10:30 a.m.

ITEM PAGE VOTE
Recognition of Career Career Fair Success 12
Ratification of the minutes of the March 16 16
11, 2026, public meeting
Applications for initial casino key
employee licenses:

[N

a) Francis Abano 18 19
b) Robert Bradley 17 18
¢) Jieyan M. Cruz 17 18
d) Naiem Khan 17 18
¢) Ocie L. Lowery 17 18
) Kevin E. Sutton 17 18

w

Applications for resubmitted casino key
employee licenses and/or for
qualification:

a) James G. Adams Jr. 19 22
b) Gerald W. Beaver 19 22
c) John J. Brady 4th 23 24

d) Yolotli Z. Cana-Mimay, a/k/a Yolotli 19 22
Z. Canas, Yolotli Z.
Canas-Rodriguez, Yolotli Z. Mimay

¢) Anthony J. Casale 2nd 19 22
14 TROPICANA ATLANTIC CITY CORP., AND 15 1) Babu Chowdhury 19 22
CAESARS INTERACTIVE ENTERTAINMENT NEW g) Edwin Colon 19 22
15 JERSEY, LLC 16 h) Yan M. Dedomenicis, a’k/a Yan M. Wu 19 22
16 ITEMNO. 14 DIANNA W. FAUNTLEROY, GENERAL COUNSEL i) Timothy W. Downey 19 22
PAULINA R. DeARAUJO, DEPUTY ATTORNEY 17 j) Barrie R. Feldman 19 22
17 GENERAL k) John J. l'-'orelh, a/k/a John J. 24 25
18 Folcarelli
BROWNSTEIN HYATT FARBER SCHRECK 1) Nakeeta R. French 19 22
18 PACIFICO S. AGNELLINI, ESQ. 19 m) Michael J. Gorney Sr. 19 22
FOR: CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT, INC., n) Vicki L. Guveiyian 23 24
19 HARRAH'S ATLANTIC CITY OPERATING 20 o) Signe J. Huff, a/k/a Signe J. Carlson 25 26
COMPANY, LLC, BOARDWALK REGENCY, LLC, p) Vadim Ivanyushchenko 19 22
20 TROPICANA ATLANTIC CITY CORP., AND 21 @ Jefiey €. Jamicson 1922
CAESARS INTERACTIVE ENTERTAINMENT NEW ” “E}m H. Klinger, a/lda Steve H. 19 22
21 JERSEY, LLC s) Mary R. Kramer 19 22
22 23 t)Kevin W. Lisek 19 22
23 u) Jane D. Lombardo, a/k/a Jane D. 19 22
24 24 Blanchard, Jan D. Richards
25 v) Alicia A. Magee, a/k/a Alicia A. 19 22
25 Bready
ROSENBERG & ASSOCIATES, INC. (800) 662-6878

www.rosenbergandassociates.com




1 CONTINUED AGENDA

PUBLIC MEETING NO. 26-05-13

CONTINUED AGENDA

2 MAY 13,2026, 10:30 a.m. 2 PUBLIC MEETING NO. 26-05-13
3 ITEM PAGE VOTE MAY 13,2026, 10:30 a.m.
4 3 w) Tracy L. Marshall 19 22 3
x) Styliani I. Otheitou, a/k/a 19 22 ITEM PAGE VOTE
5 Styliani I. Haritopoulos . " X
y) Michael R. Pasch 19 22 14 Joint Petition of Caesars Entertainment, 70 74
6 7) Vikas Patel 19 22 Inc, Harrah's Atlantic City Operating
aa) David Powell 19 22 Company. ILC, Boardwalk Regency, LLC,
7 bb) Jonathan Rios 19 22 6  Tropicana Atlan'tlc City Lom., and
cc) Thomas E. Robinson 19 22 7 JCaesars]}]iltceractlve Iti_ntenauuper}t Nfew
8  dd) Yarinnette Santiago, a/k/a 19 22 ersey, L%, Tequesting permission 1or
. ! Zach Zarnoch to assume the duties and
Yarinnette Herrera, Yarinnette . . .
9 Tejada 8  exercise the powers of Senior Vice
. President Anti-Money Laundering
ee) Michael J. Sc.h ]'.lhz 19 22 9  Compliance for Caesars Entertainment,
10 ff) John M. Tanzini 19 22 Inc., pending plenary qualification
£9) Ryar_l M. Tyers 19 22 10 (PRN 0972603)
11 hh) Melissa M. Velez . 19 22 15 Consideration of the initial casino key 74 77
4 Approyals through Delegation of 27 11 employee licensure and plenary
12 Authority between March 1, 2026, and qualification of Edward M. Davis to
April 30, 2026, pursuant to Resolution 12 serve as Vice President and Assistant
13 No.26-02-12-16-D General Manager for Boardwalk Regency,
5 Request for inactivation of casino key 31 33 13 LLC, d/b/a Caesars Atlantic City
14 employee licenses: (PRN 2322501)
a) Sean A. Carroll 14 16 Petition of Tropicana Atlantic City 78 81
15 b) Corey M. Collins Corp., d/b/a Tropicana Atlantic City,
¢) Antonio Maldonado 15 for the issuance of a temporary casino
16 d) Tabitha A. Solorzano, a/k/a Tabitha key employee license to Kathleen McMunn
A. Levin 16  pursuant to NJSA 5:12-89(e) and to
17 e) Roberta J. Vroom, a/k/a Roberta J. permit her to assume the duties and
Dyer, Roberta J. Gowey Roberta J. 17 exercise the powers of Director of Hotel
18 Xroom Operations for Tropicana Atlantic City
6 Consideration of the lapse of casino 33 34 18 Corp., pending plenary qualification
19 key employee licenses: (PRN 119,2_608) . L
a) Mark R. Bangis 19 17 Joint Petition of Marina District 53 58
« Development Company, LLC, d/b/a Borgata
20 b)PIiQr;lthi)l;iil.ilennmgs, a/l/a Kathy J. 20 Hotel Casino & Spa, and MGM Resorts
1 ) Mi(I:’h ael J. Librone International fpr the issuance of a
d) Elcazar R. Lopez 21 temporary casino key employee license to
y Christine L. Whitman pursuant to NJSA
22 e) Joseph Luca K .
Melissa Melchi a/k/a Meli 22 5:12-89(e) and to permit her to assume
f) Melissa Melchionne, aMelissa the duties and exercise the powers of
23 Guzman 23 Mid-Atlantic Region Executive Director
g) John A. Scalera of Entertainment for Marina District
24 h) Sheree A. Toole 24 Development Company, LLC, pending
’s i) Thomas J. Yannaccone plenary qualification (PRN 1242603)
25
! CONTH\;"%I'EBDLIC MES’?II;\II\(]]DI\?O 26-05-13 I CONTINUED AGENDA
) MAY 13,2026, 10:30 a.m. PUBLIC MEETING NO. 26-05-13
3 ITEM PAGE VOTE 2 MAY 13, 2026, 10:30 a.m.
4 7 Consideration of the initial application 35 39 3 ITEM PAGE VOTE
of Michael Reynolds for a casino key . . s .
5 employee license (DKT 26-0004-CK) 4 18 Conmderapon of the initial casino key 81 84
8 Consideration of the resubmission 39 45 employee license and plenary
6 app_licalt(lon of Slhanelll§ Lett fO]S Ia( . 5 qualification of Shane Q. Thompson to
; ;‘;ﬁg‘;lzfé;r;’p oyee license ( serve as Vice President of Strategic
9 Consideration of the initial application 45 47 6 Marketing and Analysis for Golden Nugget
8 ofJodi Hendrie for a casino key Atlantic City, LLC, d/b/a Golden Nugget
employee license (DKT 26-0007-CK) 7 Atlantic Cit
9 10 Consideration of the initial application 47 50 R y L. .
of Chandy Tin for a casino key employee 19 Consideration of the initial casino key 62 66
10 | lliliens: (DI§{426;00‘]*)9-51) Devel 0 53 8  employee license with a multi-casino
etition of Marina District Development : .
11 Company, LLC, d/b/a Borgata Hotel Casino endorsement and plenary qua!lﬁcatlon of
& Spa and MGM Resorts International 9 JonP. Morosky to serve as Vice
12 requesting permission for Bryan Green to President of Table Games for casino
assume the duties and exercise the 10 licensees Boardwalk 1000, LLC, d/b/a
13 powers of Senior vice President and . . .
Chief Information Security Officer Hard Rock Hotel & Casino Atlantic City,
14 pending plenary qualification 11 and HR Atlantic City, LLC
(PRN 05627601)
15 12 Petition of AC Ocean Walk, LLC, d/b/a 58 62 12 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
Ocean Casino Resorts, for the issuance MARK PADULA 86
16 ?fa temporary casino key employee 13 RECOGNITION OF EVAN FAUNTLEROY
icense to Patricia Rocco pursuant to HAIRMAN
17 NJSA 5:12-89)e) and to permit her to C PLOUSIS 95
assume the duties and exercise the 14 MARY JO FLAHERTY 96
18 powers of Vice President of Human 15
Resources for AC Ocean Walk, LLC, 16
19 pending plenary qualification
(PRN 1052602) 17
20 13 Joint Petition of Caesars Entertainment, 66 69 18
Inc, Harrah's Atlantic City Operating 19
21 Company, LLC, Boardwalk Regency, LLC,
Tropicana Atlantic City Corp., and 20
22 Caesars Interactive Entertainment New 21
Jersey, LLC, requesting permission for 22
23 David Wolkoff to assume the duties and
exercise the powers of Senior Vice 23
24 President Enterprise Analytics for 24
Caesars Entertainment, Inc., pending 25
25 plenary qualification (PRN 0972602)

ROSENBERG & ASSOCIATES, INC.

(800) 662-6878

www.rosenbergandassociates.com




10 12
1 (Public Meeting 26-05-13 was commenced 1 CAREER FAIR
2 at 10:30 a.m.) 2 Thank you.
3 MR. NANCE: Good morning. I'd like to 3 MS. FAUNTLEROY: When I call your name
4 read an opening statement: 4 please answer for the roll please.
5 This is to advise the general public 5 Commissioners Formica?
6 that in compliance with Chapter 231 of the public 6 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Here.
7 laws of 1975 entitled "Senator Byron M. Baer Open 7 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Vice Chair Mollineaux?
8 Public Meeting Act," the New Jersey Casino 8 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Present.
9 Control Commission on December 10th, 2025, filed 9 MS. FAUNTLEROY: And Chairman Plousis?
10 with the Secretary of State at the Statehouse in 10 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Present.
11 Trenton an annual meeting schedule. 11 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Thank you.
12 On December 10th, 2025, copies were 12 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Before we proceed with
13 mailed to subscribers. 13 our regular meeting agenda, I would like to take
14 The use of cell phones in the public 14 this opportunity to public acknowledge --
15 meeting room while the Commission is in session 15 publicly acknowledge and thank everyone who
16 is prohibited. 16 contributed to the success of our annual Casino
17 Any member of the public who wish to 17 Career Fair that was held two weeks ago.
18 address the Commission will be given the 18 Working together we were able to provide
19 opportunity to do so before the Commission 19 an opportunity for hundreds of job seekers. A
20 adjourns for the day. 20 record number of people were hired as a direct
21 Please stand for the Pledge of 21 result of this year's event. Collectively the
22 Allegiance. 22 casinos are recruiting to fill 1200 jobs. All
23 (The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.) 23 nine casinos sent hiring representatives to meet
24 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Welcome, everyone who is 24 in person with Career Fair attendees. This event
25 joining us in person and remotely today. 25 would not be possible without the involvement of
11 13
1 Meeting participants who wish to do so 1 CAREER FAIR
2 can continue to address the Commission through 2 the casinos, and I'm grateful for their ongoing
3 remote technology. 3 support.
4 We are also permitting in-person 4 The American Legion has been our partner
5 participation, and the public meeting room is 5 from the first event in 2018. The Legion
6 therefore open. We will, however, continue to 6 continues to be instrumental in bringing veterans
7 stream our public meetings. The public is able 7 to the event as well as arranging and
8 to listen through access provided on the 8 coordinating on-site services, including the US
9 Commission's website as well as through our 9 Department of Veterans Affairs, New Jersey
10 YouTube channel. 10 Department of Veterans Affairs, and Volunteers of
11 We will accept public comments via 11 America and Catholic Charities, the City of
12 e-mail. Public comments can be sent to public. 12 Atlantic City, Mayor Marty Small, and Council
13 comments@ccc.nj.gov. I will repeat that. Public 13 Vice President Kaleem Shabazz, were also very
14 comments can be sent to public.comments@ccc. 14 supportive and are always helpful in spreading
15 nj.gov beginning now and any time throughout the 15 the news leading up to the event.
16 meeting, ending at the time of adjournment. 16 On site résumé assistance was provided
17 This meeting is being transcribed as 17 by the New Jersey Department of Labor and has
18 well as recorded, and minutes will be available 18 been a very popular -- very popular with job
19 on our website in due course. 19 seekers.
20 To meeting participant callers, I ask 20 People interested in education were also
21 that you follow the instructions with the web 21 assisted by the New Jersey Higher Education
22 link or audio call-in code and place your phones 22 Student Assistant Authority and Atlantic Cape
23 on mute until your matter is called. Also, when 23 Community College.
24 your matter is called, please turn on your camera 24 The Commission remains committed to
25 and identify yourself before speaking. 25 bringing awareness and potential employment
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1 CAREER FAIR 1 ITEM NO. 1
2 opportunities in the casino industry for former 2 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Reporting on the closed
3 offenders. In that vein, the New Jersey 3 session.
4 Judiciary was on site. Also the Atlantic and 4 Now, agenda Item No. 1 for your
5 Cape May County Probation, New Jersey State 5 consideration is the ratification of the minutes
6 Parole Board were also present to meet with 6 of the March 11, 2026, public portion.
7 clients and discuss opportunities. 7 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Are there any questions
8 Our sister agency, the New Jersey 8 for counsel or corrections?
9 Division of Gaming Enforcement, has been 9 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: No.
10 supportive from the very beginning. The Division 10 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir.
11 was present again this year to meet with Career 11 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, is there a
12 Fair attendees to discuss casino employment 12 motion?
13 registration. 13 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes, sir. Mr.
14 I would also like to acknowledge and 14 Chairman. Thank you.
15 thank the Atlantic City Police Department and the 15 I move to ratify the minutes of March
16 CRDA, both that provided support for the event. 16 11, 2026, minutes.
17 Last but not least, I would like to 17 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Is there a second?
18 thank the Commission staff who enthusiastically 18 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Mr. Chairman, I
19 embrace the Casino Career Fair every year. They 19 second the motion.
20 see to every possible detail and always ensure a 20 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Any further discussion?
21 smooth and successful event. 21 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir.
22 Once again, thank you to all, and we are 22 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: No.
23 looking forward to our tenth year in April of 23 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, all in
24 '27. 24 favor, say aye?
25 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Thank you, Mr. 25 (Ayes.)
15 17
1 CAREER FAIR 1 ITEM NO. 2
2 Chairman. 2 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Opposed?
3 Matters discussed in closed session this 3 (No response.)
4 morning included employee license matters, 4 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Ayes have it.
5 approval of the March 11, 2026, closed-session 5 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Thank you.
6 minutes, approval of the recommendation to 6 Item No. 2 are applications for initial
7 promote Elisha Gorum to the position of Research 7 casino key employee licenses. They include:
8 Analyst, Program Analyst and Operations 8 Francis Abano, Robert Bradley, Jieyan M. Cruz,
9 Specialist 1 Band in the Division of Regulatory 9 Naiem Khan, Ocie L. Lowery, and Kevin E. Sutton.
10 Affairs, Policy Planning and Development Unit. 10 All matters have been reviewed with the
11 And approval of the hiring of Linda C. Ealer to 11 exception of Francis Abano. There is a
12 the position of Temporary Employment Service, 12 recommendation by the Division to grant the
13 Special Service TES 994, in the Division of 13 initial casino key employee licenses which
14 Regulatory Affairs Policy Planning, and 14 recommendation is supported by Commission staff
15 Development Unit. 15 and a recommendation that you grant the initial
16 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Are there any questions 16 casino key employee licenses of Mr. Bradley, Mr.
17 for counsel or corrections? 17 Cruz, Kahn, Lowery, and Sutton.
18 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: No. 18 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Are there any questions
19 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No. 19 regarding any of these matters?
20 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, is there a 20 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir.
21 motion? 21 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: No.
22 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Mr. Chairman? 22 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, is there a
23 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Yes. 23 motion?
24 MS. FAUNTLEROY: No motion is required. 24 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes, sir. Thank
25 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Oh, sorry. 25 you, Mr. Chairman.
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1 ITEM NO. 2 1 ITEM NO. 3
2 At this time I've reviewed Assistant 2 They include the following: James G.
3 Director Ealer's memo, the Division's reports. 1 3 Adams, Jr., Gerald W. Beaver, John J. Brady 4th,
4 move to grant the five initial casino key 4 Yolotli Z. Cana-Mimay, also known as Yolotli Z.
5 employee licenses as listed by General Counsel. 5 Canas, Yolotli Z. Canas-Rodriguez, and Yolotli Z.
6 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Is there a second? 6 Mimay, Anthony J. Casale 2nd, Babu Chowdhury,
7 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Mr. Chairman, I 7 Edwin Colon, Yan M. Dedomenicis, also known as
8 second the motion. 8 Yan M. Wu, Timothy W. Downey, Barrie R. Feldman,
9 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Any further discussion? 9 John J. Forelli, also known as John J.
10 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir. 10 Folcarelli, Nakeeta R. French, Michael J. Gorney
11 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: No. 11 Sr., Vicki L. Guveiyian, Signe H. [sic] Huff,
12 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, all in 12 also known as Signe J. Carlson, Vadim
13 favor, say aye? 13 Ivanyushchenko, Jeftrey J. [sic] Jamieson, Steven
14 (Ayes.) 14 H. Klinger, also known as Steve H. Klinger, Mary
15 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Opposed? 15 R. Kramer, Kevin W. Lisek, Jane D. Lombardo, also
16 (No response.) 16 known as Jane D. Blanchard, also known as Jan D.
17 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Ayes have it. 17 Richards, Alicia A. Magee, also known as Alicia
18 MS. FAUNTLEROY: With respect to Francis 18 A. Bready, Tracy L. Marshall, Styliani L. [sic]
19 Abano, there's a recommendation for a conference 19 Otheitou, also known as Styliani L. [sic]
20 in this matter, and staff recommends that the 20 Haritopoulos, Michael R. Pasch, Vikas Patel,
21 matter be remanded to the contested-case process. 21 David Powell, Jonathan Rios, Thomas E. Robinson,
22 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Are there any questions 22 Yarinnette Santiago, also known as Yarinnette
23 for counsel on this matter? 23 Herrera, also known as Yarinnette Tejada, Michael
24 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir. 24 J. Schultz, John M. Tanzini, Ryan J. Tyers, and
25 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: No. 25 Melissa M. Velez.
19 21
1 ITEM NO. 3 1 ITEM NO. 3
2 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, is there a 2 Whew. Ineed asip of water.
3 motion? 3 With respect to each of those items
4 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes, sir. Thank 4 except for John J. Bready 4th and Vicki Lynn
5 you, Mr. Chairman. 5 Guveiyian, which will be called separately, the
6 Again, reviewing Assistant Director 6 remaining 30 requests for resubmission have been
7 Ealer's memo and the Division's reports, at this 7 reviewed by the Division and Commission staff
8 time I move to remand for a hearing for an 8 with a joint recommendation that those 30 be
9 initial key employee license application of 9 granted.
10 Francis Abano. 10 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Are there any questions
11 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Is there a second? 11 on -- regarding any of these matters?
12 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Mr. Chairman, I 12 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes. I havea
13 second the motion. 13 question for General Counsel. I'm sorry.
14 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Any further discussion? 14 MS. FAUNTLEROY: I'msorry. There's
15 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: No. 15 actually two and then an additional two.
16 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, all in all 16 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yeah. That's
17 in favor, say aye? 17 what I was going to ask you.
18 (Ayes.) 18 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Yes.
19 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Opposed? 19 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: John J.
20 (No response.) 20 Forelli --
21 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Ayes have it. 21 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Yes.
22 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Thank you. 22 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: -- and Signe
23 Item No. 3 are applications for 23 Huff. Yeah.
24 resubmitted casino key employee licenses and/or 24 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Yes. We're going to
25 for qualification. 25 call those separately as well.
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22 24
1 ITEM NO. 3 1 ITEM NO. 3
2 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Okay. So aside 2 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing no -- hearing
3 from those four, we're making a motion on these. 3 none, all in favor, say aye?
4 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Yes. Thank you. 4 (Ayes.)
5 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: T have no further 5 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Opposed?
6 questions, Mr. Chairman. 6 (No response.)
7 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Is there a motion then? 7 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Ayes have it.
8 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes, sir. Again, 8 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Thank you.
9 reviewing Assistant Director Ealer's memo, the 9 The remaining two are resubmissions and
10 Division reports, presentation by counsel, I move 10 qualification requiring a roll call vote.
11 to grant the 30 resubmitted casino key employee 11 The first is John J. Forelli to remain
12 licenses as listed by General Counsel. 12 as Senior Vice President and Chief Information
13 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Is there a second? 13 Officer for AC Ocean Walk, LLC.
14 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Mr. Chairman, I 14 The Division has reviewed and recommends
15 second the motion. 15 that the resubmission and qualification by
16 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Any further discussion? 16 granted. Commission staff concurs.
17 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir. 17 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Are there any questions
18 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: No. 18 regarding this matter?
19 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, all in 19 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: No.
20 favor, say aye? 20 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: I don't. No,
21 (Ayes.) 21 Sir.
22 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Opposed? 22 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, is there a
23 (No response.) 23 motion?
24 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Ayes have it. 24 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes, sir. Thank
25 MS. FAUNTLEROY: With respect to 3c, 25 you, Mr. Chairman.
23 25
1 ITEM NO. 3 1 ITEM NO. 3
2 John J. Bready 4th and 3n, Vicki Guveiyian, an 2 I move to grant the submitted key
3 objection has been raised by the Division with 3 license and qualification of John J. Bready 4th.
4 respect to each. Staff recommends that both 4 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Is there a second?
5 matters be remanded to the contested-case 5 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Mr. Chairman, [
6 process. 6 second the motion.
7 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Are there any questions 7 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Any further discussion?
8 for counsel on this matter? 8 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: No.
9 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir. 9 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, roll call
10 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: No. 10 vote?
11 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, is there a 11 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Commissioner Formica?
12 motion? 12 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes.
13 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes, sir, thank 13 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Vice Chair Mollineaux?
14 you, Mr. Chairman. 14 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Yes.
15 Again, reviewing Assistant Director 15 MS. FAUNTLEROY: And Chairman Plousis?
16 Ealer's memo and the Division's reports, at this 16 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Yes.
17 time I move to remand for a hearing the two 17 MS. FAUNTLEROY: And -- thank you.
18 resubmitted casino key employee license 18 Signe J. Huff, 30, a resubmission and
19 applications of John J. Bready and Vicki Lynn 19 qualification to continue to serve as Vice
20 Guveiyian. 20 President of Human Resources for AC Ocean Walk,
21 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Is there a second? 21 LLC.
22 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Mr. Chairman, I 22 Again, the Division has reviewed that
23 second the motion. 23 resubmission and the continued qualification
24 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Any further discussion? 24 raising no objection. Commission staff concurs
25 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir. 25 and requests that the resubmission and continued
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1 ITEM NO. 3 1 ITEM NO. 4
2 qualification be granted. 2 employee license was granted to James M. Caputo
3 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Are there any questions 3 for a director of table games position at
4 regarding this matter? 4 Tropicana.
5 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir. 5 On March 12 a temporary casino key
6 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: No. 6 employee license was granted to Simone R.
7 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, is there a 7 Thompson for a dual-rate surveillance
8  motion? 8 officer/shift manager position at Golden Nugget.
9 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes, sir. Thank 9 On March 16th temporary casino key
10 you, Mr. Chairman. 10 employee licenses were granted to Lamar B.
11 Again, reviewing the memo and the 11 Gresham 11, for a sportsbook supervisor position
12 reports, at this time I move to grant the 12 at Tropicana, Majid Hussain for a director of
13 resubmitted key employee license and 13 facilities position at Hard Rock.
14 qualification of Signe J. Huff. 14 On March 18th a temporary casino key
15 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Is there a second? 15 employee license with a multi-casino endorsement
16 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Mr. Chairman, I 16 was granted to Erica E. Thomas for a director of
17 second the motion. 17 player services regional position at Caesars,
18 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Any further discussion? 18 Harrah's, and Tropicana.
19 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir. 19 On March 25th a temporary casino key
20 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: No. 20 employee licenses were granted to Kurt Ferry for
21 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, roll call 21 a dual-rate security supervisor/shift manager
22 vote? 22 position at Tropicana, Jennifer Lopez-Gonzaga for
23 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Commissioner Formica? 23 a casino cashiering position at Ocean, and Juan
24 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes. 24 A. Montan-Morales for a dual-rate security
25 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Vice Chair Mollineaux? 25 supervisor/shift manager position at Tropicana.
27 29
1 ITEM NO. 4 1 ITEM NO. 4
2 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Yes. 2 On March 31st temporary casino key
3 MS. FAUNTLEROY: And Chairman Plousis? 3 employee licenses were granted to Rogelio
4 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Yes. 4 Aguilar, Jr., for a dual-rate cashier casino
5 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Thank you. 5 services III/supervisor position at Caesars,
6 Item No. 4 are approvals through 6 Damian A. Fuqua for a surveillance shift manager
7 Delegation of Authority between March 1, 2026, 7 position at Borgata, Yilan Gao for a casino shift
8 and April 30, 2026, pursuant to Resolution No. 8 manager position at Caesars, Nia N. Little for a
9 26-02-11-16-D. 9 casino cashiering supervisor position at Ocean,
10 We have Manager Harry Givas here to 10 and to Anthony V. Santiago for a surveillance
11 present; however, no action is required on this 11 shift manager position at Borgata.
12 matter at this time. 12 On April 6th a temporary casino key
13 MR. GIVAS: Thank you. Good morning 13 employee license with a multi-casino endorsement
14 Chairman and Commissioners. For the record, I'm 14 was granted to Li F. Wong for an executive
15 Harry Givas, Manager of the Commission's 15 director of Asian marketing and regional position
16 Licensing and Financial Evaluation Unit. 16 at Caesars, Harrah's, and Tropicana.
17 Between March 1st and April 30th, the 17 On April 7th a temporary casino key
18 staff of the Commission's Regulatory Affairs 18 employee license was granted to Stanley Dworak,
19 Division granted the following approvals via its 19 Jr., for a surveillance assistant supervisor
20 delegated authority. 20 position at Resorts.
21 On March 3rd a temporary casino key 21 On April 9th a temporary casino key
22 employee license was granted to Connor D. Pickett 22 employee license was granted to Kristina P. James
23 for a sportsbook assistant manager position at 23 for a dual-rate security supervisor/shift manager
24 Tropicana. 24 position at Tropicana.
25 On March 5th a temporary casino key 25 On April 13th a temporary casino key

ROSENBERG & ASSOCIATES, INC.

(800) 662-6878

www.rosenbergandassociates.com




30 32
1 ITEM NO. 4 1 ITEMNO. 5
2 employee license was granted to Ester A. Perez, 2 If the requests are granted, these
3 also known as Ester A. Green, for a casino key 3 individuals may remain on the approved inactive
4 employee cage supervisor position at Harrah's. 4 list for a period of up to five years.
5 On April 14th temporary casino key 5 Commission staff has reviewed the
6 employee licenses were granted to Azhani S. Best 6  request and recommend that you grant the
7 for a casino services cashier supervisor position 7 requested relief.
8 at Harrah's, Ryan T. Hartnett for a sportsbook 8 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Are there any questions
9 assistant manager position at Caesars, Zaheer 1. 9 regarding any of these matters?
10 Owens for a sportsbook supervisor position at 10 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir.
11 Harrah's. 11 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: No.
12 And on April 23rd a temporary casino key 12 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, is there a
13 employee license was granted to Steven Griffith, 13 motion?
14 Jr., for a poker shift manager position at 14 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes, sir. Thank
15 Borgata. 15 you, Mr. Chairman.
16 On April 24th a temporary casino key 16 At this time I move to grant the
17 employee license was granted to Roy C. Jackson, 17 requested relief and order that the five casino
18 Jr., for a poker shift manager position at 18 key employee licenses be inactivated.
19 Borgata. 19 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Is there a second?
20 And on April 30th temporary casino key 20 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Mr. Chairman, I
21 employee licenses were granted to Brian J. 21 second the motion.
22 Medina-Medina, for a sportsbook supervisor 22 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Any further discussion?
23 position at Harrah's, and Abdur R. Johnson-Molley 23 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir.
24 for a dual-rate security supervisor/shift manager 24 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: No.
25 position at Tropicana. This was a title change 25 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, all in
31 33
1 ITEM NO. 5§ 1 ITEM NO. 6
2 and the expiration of the temporary casino key 2 favor, say aye?
3 employee license remains the same as the original 3 (Ayes.)
4 temporary casino key employee license that was 4 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Opposed?
5 approved on November 18th, 2025. 5 (No response.)
6 This memorializes the approvals that 6 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Ayes have it.
7 were granted by the Commission's Division of 7 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Thank you.
8 Regulatory Affairs via its delegated authority 8 Item No. 6 is consideration of the
9 during this period. No further Commission action 9 lapsing of certain casino key employee licenses.
10 is required. 10 Again we have Manager Harry Givas to
11 Thank you. 11 review it with you.
12 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Item No. 5 are your 12 MR. GIVAS: Thanks.
13 consideration of requests for inactivation of 13 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Uh-hum.
14 casino key employee licenses. 14 MR. GIVAS: For your consideration is
15 Again, Manager Harry Givas will review 15 the lapsing of the casino key employee licenses
16 those matters with you. 16 for the following individuals for failure to file
17 MR. GIVAS: Thank you. 17 a casino key employee license review application
18 In lieu of filing a casino key employee 18  to or request to be placed on the casino key
19 license review application, Sean A. Carroll, 19 employee license approved inactive list.
20 Corey M. Collins, Antonio Maldonado, Tabitha A. 20 Mark R. Bangis, Kathy J. Jennings, also
21 Solorzano, also known as Tabitha A. Levin, and 21 known as Kathy J. Pimpinelli, Michael J. Librone,
22 Roberta J. Vroom, also known as Roberta J. Dyer, 22 Eleazar R. Lopez, Joseph Luca, Melissa
23 Roberta J. Gowey, or Roberta J. Xroom, have 23 Melchionne, also known as Melissa Guzman, John A.
24 requested to be placed on the casino key employee 24 Scalera, Sheree A. Toole, and Thomas J.
25 license approved inactive list. 25 Yannaccone.
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1 ITEM NO. 6 1 ITEM NO. 7
2 In each case the date to file a casino 2 MS. FIETKIEWICZ: Good morning, Chairman
3 key employee license has passed. Based on 3 and Commissioners. Jocelyn Fietkiewicz, Deputy
4 staff's view, we recommend that the casino key 4 Attorney General, on behalf of the Division of
5 employee licenses of the noted individuals be 5 Gaming Enforcement.
6 deemed to have lapsed. 6 The Division has nothing further to add
7 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Are there any questions 7 in this matter and would respectfully request
8 regarding any of these matters? 8 that the application be approved as submitted.
9 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir. 9 Thank you.
10 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: No. 10 CHAIR PLOUSIS: And for the record, Mr.
11 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, is there a 11 Reynolds is that not here in person or
12 motion? 12 telephonically?
13 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes, sir. Thank 13 MS. PIMPINELLI: Correct.
14 you, Mr. Chairman. 14 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Are there any questions
15 I move to find that the nine casino key 15 for counsel?
16 employee licenses lapsed pursuant to NJAC 16 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Ido. For the
17 19:41A-6.1(f) of the regulation. 17 Division.
18 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Is there a second? 18 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Yes.
19 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Mr. Chairman, I 19 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Good morning,
20 second the motion. 20 Miss Fietkiewicz.
21 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Any further discussion? 21 Did I read the report correctly that in
22 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir. 22 2023 Mr. Reynolds failed to substantiate almost
23 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: No. 23 about $14,000 in business expenses?
24 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, all in 24 It's 2022. I'm sorry. Page 2 at the
25 favor, say aye? 25 top.
35 37
1 ITEM NO. 7 1 ITEM NO. 7
2 (Ayes.) 2 MS. FIETKIEWICZ: The 13,890?
3 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Opposed? 3 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Right. Almost
4 (No response.) 4 14,000.
5 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Ayes have it. 5 MS. FIETKIEWICZ: Correct.
6 MR. GIVAS: Thank you. 6 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: And 2022 he
7 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Item No. 7 is 7 didn't include $7100 in unemployment benefits?
8 consideration of the initial application of 8 MS. FIETKIEWICZ: Correct.
9 Michael Reynolds for a casino key employee 9 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Here's a big one.
10 license. That is Docket No. 26-0004-CK. 10 2023 failed to report $30,000 on his Federal
11 MS. PIMPINELLI: Good morning, Chairman 11 Income Tax. Do I got that right?
12 and Commissioners. Teresa Pimpinelli, Senior 12 MS. FIETKIEWICZ: Correct. That was
13 Counsel, appearing for the Commission. 13 unreported.
14 For your consideration is the 14 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Do you have
15 stipulation of settlement for the initial 15 any -- did he give the investigator any reason
16 application of Michael Reynolds for his casino 16 for any of these discrepancies? To your
17 key employee license application. If approved, 17 knowledge.
18 Mr. Reynolds will be licensed through May of 18 MS. FIETKIEWICZ: Yes. It was addressed
19 2031 19 with him. Off the top of my head, T don't
20 You have the staff's memo and 20 recall --
21 recommendation for this matter. 21 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: That's okay.
22 Mr. Reynolds was notified of today's 22 Anyway, he and the Division reached an agreement.
23 proceedings. 23 You were satisfied that you can make adjustments
24 And I'would just ask counsel for the 24 on his tax forms and then enter into a payment
25 Division to enter their appearance and proceed. 25  plan, so that's why you had agreed to the

ROSENBERG & ASSOCIATES, INC.

(800) 662-6878

www.rosenbergandassociates.com




38 40
1 ITEM NO. 7 1 ITEM NO. 8
2 stipulation. And you're confident of that? 2 Miss Lett was notified of today's
3 MS. FIETKIEWICZ: Correct. 3 proceedings.
4 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Okay. Thanks. 4 I would ask counsel for the Division to
5 That's all I have. 5 enter their appearance and proceed.
6 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Any other questions for 6 MS. FIETKIEWICZ: Chairman and
7 counsel? 7 Commissioners, Jocelyn Fietkiewicz, Deputy
8 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: No. 8 Attorney General, on behalf of Division of Gaming
9 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Is there a motion? 9 Enforcement.
10 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes, sir. Thank 10 The Division has nothing further on this
11 you, Mr. Chairman. 11 matter and respectfully requests the stipulation
12 I reviewed the memo of Senior Counsel, 12 be approved as submitted.
13 the stipulation entered into, had a colloquy with 13 Thank you.
14 counsel here, and at this time I move to approve 14 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Again for the record,
15 the stipulation of settlement between the 15 Ms. Lett is not here?
16 Division and the Applicant, grant the initial 16 MS. PIMPINELLI: Correct.
17 application of Michael Reynolds for a casino key 17 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Thank you.
18 employee license subject to compliance with the 18 Are there any questions for counsel?
19 terms and conditions as provided in the 19 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes, sir. 1 have
20 stipulation. 20 questions for the Division. I'm sorry. If]
21 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Is there a second? 21 asked you about the last one, Miss Fietkiewicz, |
22 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Mr. Chairman, | 22 have to ask you about this one.
23 second the motion. 23 Did I read this correctly? In 2020 Miss
24 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Any further discussion? 24 Lett took 15 grand in deductions for charitable
25 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir. 25 contributions.
39 41
1 ITEM NO. 8 1 ITEM NO. 8
2 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: No. 2 MS. FIETKIEWICZ: Correct.
3 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, all in 3 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: 2021 she took
4 favor, say aye? 4 another 14 grand.
5 (Ayes.) 5 MS. FIETKIEWICZ: Correct.
6 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Opposed? 6 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: 2022 another 14?
7 (No response.) 7 MS. FIETKIEWICZ: Correct.
8 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Ayes have it. 8 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: 2023 another 14.
9 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Thank you. 9 MS. FIETKIEWICZ: Correct.
10 Item No. 8 is the consideration of the 10 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: 2024, 15.
11 resubmission application of Shanelle Lett for a 11 MS. FIETKIEWICZ: Correct.
12 casino key employee license, Docket No. 12 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: That's about
13 25-0212-CR. 13 75,000 in five years. Not talking about any old
14 Again we have Senior Counsel Pimpinelli 14 baby strollers in the garage that she gave away,
15 here to review that with you. 15  did we? Did we ever find out what these
16 MS. PIMPINELLI: Chairman and 16 charitable contributions were?
17 Commissioners, Teresa Pimpinelli, Senior Counsel 17 MS. FIETKIEWICZ: She could not provide
18 here for the Commission. 18 documentation for all of the charitable expenses.
19 For your consideration is the 19 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Okay. She had
20 stipulation of settlement for the resubmission 20  mentioned something about -- she gave information
21 application of Shanelle Lett for her casino key 21 to her accountant but they couldn't find the
22 employee license. If approved, Miss Lett will be 22 accountant. Something like that?
23 licensed through May of 2029. 23 MS. FIETKIEWICZ: Off the top of my head
24 You have staff's memo and recommendation 24 1don't recall specifically. Iknew she had an
25 for this matter. 25 accountant and was trying to, I guess, get in
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1 ITEM NO. 8 1 ITEMNO. 8
2 contact with them to see if they had any of the 2 mean, I don't like paying taxes either. What did
3 substantiating documents. 3 Ben Franklin say? The only certainty in life is
4 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Anybody ever get 4 death and taxes. I'm not so sure this looks like
5 in contact with that accountant to your 5 financial stability, integrity, and
6  knowledge? From your office? 6 responsibility under the statute. Nonetheless,
7 MS. FIETKIEWICZ: I -- 7 under the Chairman's guidance as the Commissioner
8 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: To your 8 of Second Chances and Opportunities. Lord knows,
9  knowledge. 9 I caught my share of breaks. So I'm willing to
10 MS. FIETKIEWICZ: -- don't recall off 10 give Miss Lett an opportunity to maintain this
11 the top of my head. 11 key license.
12 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Check the federal 12 This is a resubmission; right, Miss
13 prison system? That's a joke. 13 Fietkiewicz?
14 Allright. Again, Miss Fietkiewicz, 1 14 MS. FIETKIEWICZ: Correct.
15 assume the Division was satisfied that Miss Lett 15 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: And hopefully
16 can readjust her tax returns, substantiate or 16 that will help her to get her tax return issues
17 kind of explain all those deductions to your 17 revolved.
18 satisfaction, and that's why you entered into the 18 So at this time I approve the -- I make
19 stipulation. 19 a motion to approve the stipulation of settlement
20 MS. FIETKIEWICZ: Yes. Correct. And 20 between the Division and the Applicant for the
21 she was advised of the requirement to document 21 resubmission application of Shanelle Lett for a
22 any type of deductions in the future and to 22 casino key employee license subject to compliance
23 retain that documentation. 23 with the terms and conditions as provided for in
24 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Okay. Thank you 24 the stipulation.
25 very much. 25 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Is there a second?
43 45
1 ITEM NO. 8 1 ITEM NO. 9
2 That's all I have. 2 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Mr. Chairman, I
3 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Are there any other 3 second the motion.
4 questions for counsel? 4 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Any further discussion?
5 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Yes. Thank you 5 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir.
6 Mr. Chairman. 6 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: No.
7 Did you say that she did not give the -- 7 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, all in
8 have all of her charitable receipts? 8 favor, say aye?
9 MS. FIETKIEWICZ: Correct. She did not 9 (Ayes.)
10 have the receipts to provide us to substantiate 10 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Opposed?
11 the amounts that were reported on her tax 11 (No response.)
12 returns. 12 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Ayes have it.
13 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Is that odd or 13 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Item No. 9 is
14 not? Is that odd? Ornot? That you should have 14 consideration of the initial application of Jodi
15 them or not? 15 Hendrie for a casino key employee license, Docket
16 MS. FIETKIEWICZ: Well, pursuant to the 16 No. 26-0007-CK.
17 IRS guidelines, you should retain documentation 17 Again we have Senior Counsel Pimpinelli
18 of any type of reported deductions that you're 18 to address that matter with you.
19 going to include in your tax returns. 19 MS. PIMPINELLI: Chairman and
20 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Okay. Thank 20 Commissioners, Teresa Pimpinelli, Senior Counsel,
21 you. 21 appearing for the Commission.
22 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Is there a motion? 22 For your consideration is the
23 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes, sir. Thank 23 stipulation of settlement for the initial
24 you, Mr. Chairman. 24 application of Jodi Hendrie for her casino key
25 This is a little troubling to me. 1 25 employee license. If approved, Miss Hendrie will
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1 ITEM NO. 9 1 ITEM NO. 10
2 be licensed through May of 2031. 2 Docket No. 26-0049-SI, with Senior Counsel Teresa
3 You have staff's memo and recommendation 3 Pimpinelli to review it with you.
4 for this matter. 4 MS. PIMPINELLI: Chairman and
5 Miss Hendrie was notified of today's 5 Commissioners, Teresa Pimpinelli appearing on
6 proceedings. 6 behalf of Commission.
7 I would just ask counsel for the 7 For your consideration is the
8 Division to enter their appearance and proceed. 8 stipulation of settlement for the initial
9 MS. FIETKIEWICZ: Chairman and 9 application of Chandy Tin for her casino key
10 Commissioners, Jocelyn Fietkiewicz, Deputy 10 employee license. If approved, Miss Tin will be
11 Attorney General, on behalf of Division of Gaming 11 licensed through May of 2031.
12 Enforcement. 12 You have staff's memo and recommendation
13 The Division has nothing further on this 13 for this matter.
14 matter and respectfully requests that the 14 Miss Tin was notified of today's
15 stipulation be approved as submitted. 15 proceedings.
16 Thank you. 16 And [ would just ask counsel for the
17 CHAIR PLOUSIS: For the record, Miss 17 Division to enter their appearance and proceed.
18 Hendrie is not present? Iam -- 18 MS. FIETKIEWICZ: Chairman and
19 MS. PIMPINELLI: Correct. 19 Commissioners, Jocelyn Fietkiewicz, Deputy
20 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Are there any questions 20 Attorney General, on behalf of Division of Gaming
21 for counsel on this matter? 21 Enforcement.
22 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir. 22 You have the Division's report along
23 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, is there a 23 with the stipulation of settlement that has been
24 motion? 24 entered with the Applicant.
25 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes, sir. Thank 25 The Division respectfully requests that
47 49
1 ITEM NO. 10 1 ITEM NO. 10
2 you, Mr. Chairman. 2 the stipulation be approved as submitted and
3 I reviewed the memo of Senior Counsel. 3 recommends the granting of the Applicant's casino
4 I've reviewed the stipulation, the Division's 4 key employee license subject to the terms and
5 reports. I move to approve the stipulation of 5 conditions of the stipulation.
6 settlement between the Division and the Applicant 6 Thank you.
7 grant the initial application of Jodi Hendrie for 7 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Again for the record,
8 a casino key employee license subject to 8 Miss Tin is not here?
9 compliance with the terms and conditions as 9 MS. PIMPINELLI: Correct.
10 provided for in the stipulation. 10 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Any questions for
11 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Is there a second? 11 counsel on this matter?
12 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Mr. Chairman, I 12 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir.
13 second the motion. 13 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: No.
14 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Any further discussion? 14 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, is there a
15 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: No. 15 motion?
16 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir. 16 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes, sir. Thank
17 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, all in 17 you, Mr. Chairman.
18 favor, say aye? 18 At this time I move to approve the
19 (Ayes.) 19 stipulation of settlement between the Division
20 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Opposed? 20 and the Applicant, grant the initial application
21 (No response.) 21 of Chandy Tin for a casino key employee license
22 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Ayes have it. 22 subject to compliance with the terms and
23 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Item No. 10 is 23 conditions as provided for in the stipulation.
24 consideration of the initial application of 24 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Is there a second?
25 Chandy Tin for a casino key employee license, 25 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Mr. Chairman, I
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1 ITEM NO. 11 1 ITEM NO. 11
2 second the motion. 2 resolution and grant temporary qualification to
3 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Any further discussion? 3 Mr. Green.
4 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir. 4 Thank you.
5 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: No. 5 MS. DeARAUJO: The Division submitted a
6 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, all in 6 response dated April 2nd, 2026, of no objection
7 favor, say aye? 7 to the temporary qualification of Bryan Green.
8 (Ayes.) 8 The Division has reviewed the draft
9 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Opposed? 9 resolution and has no objections.
10 (No response.) 10 Thank you.
11 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Ayes have it. 11 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Are there any questions
12 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Item -- thank you. 12 for counsel?
13 Item No. 11 is the Petition of Marina 13 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir.
14 District Development Company, LLC, d/b/a Borgata 14 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, is there a
15 Hotel Casino & Spa, and MGM Resorts International 15 motion?
16 requesting permission for Bryan Green to assume 16 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes, sir. Thank
17 the duties and exercise the powers of Senior Vice 17 you, Mr. Chairman.
18 President and Chief Information Security Officer 18 I reviewed the memo of General Counsel,
19 pending his plenary qualification. 19 the draft resolution, a letter from the Division,
20 This matter was initiated by a joint 20 the presentations of counsel at this time, and |
21 petition of Marina District Development Company 21 move to adopt the draft resolution, authorizing
22 LLC, Borgata, and MGM reports, as qualified 22 Bryan C. Green on a temporary basis and prior to
23 parent company via PRN 0562601 dated February 25, 23 his plenary qualification to assume the duties
24 2026, seeking the temporary qualification for the 24 and exercise the powers of Senior Vice President
25 position as indicated. 25 Chief Information Security Officer for MGM
51 53
1 ITEM NO. 11 1 ITEM NO. 17
2 The matter has been carried to today's 2 Resorts International subject to the conditions
3 meeting. We have counsel for the properties, MGM 3 contained in NJSA 5:12-85.1 and NJAC
4 and MDDC, present as well as counsel for the 4 13:69C-2.c -- 2.7(c) and (d).
5 Division present. With your permission, I ask 5 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Is there a second?
6 that they enter their appearances. 6 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Mr. Chairman, I
7 MR. FISHER: Good morning, Chairman and 7 second the motion.
8 Commissioners. CJ Fisher, partner with Fox 8 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Any further discussion?
9 Rothschild, appearing on behalf of Joint 9 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, no sir.
10 Petitioners Marina District Development Company, 10 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: No.
11 LLC, doing business as the Borgata Hotel Casino & 11 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, roll call
12 Spa, and MGM Resorts International. 12 vote?
13 MS. DeARAUJO: Good morning, Chairman 13 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Commissioner Formica?
14 and Commissioners. Paulina DeAraugo, Deputy 14 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes.
15 Attorney General, on behalf of the Division of 15 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Vice Chair Mollineaux?
16 Gaming Enforcement. 16 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Yes.
17 MR. FISHER: Commissioners, before you 17 MS. FAUNTLEROY: And Chairman Plousis?
18 is Borgata and MGM's Joint Petition requesting 18 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Yes.
19 the temporary qualification of Bryan Green to 19 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Thank you.
20 assume the duties and exercise the powers of 20 MR. FISHER: Thank you.
21 Senior Vice President and Chief Information 21 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Mr. Chairman, with your
22 Security Officer at the MGM. 22 permission, if we can call out of order agenda
23 I'have reviewed the draft resolution and 23 Item No. 17 which is the Joint Petition of Marina
24 have no objection to its form or substance and 24 District Development Company, LLC, d/b/a Borgata
25 respectfully request that you approve the 25 Hotel Casino & Spa and MGM Resorts International
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1 ITEM NO. 17 1 ITEM NO. 17
2 for the issuance of a temporary casino key 2 The Division has also reviewed the draft
3 employee license to Christine L. Whitman pursuant 3 resolution and has no objections.
4 to NJSA 5:12-89(e) and to permit her to assume 4 Thank you.
5 the duties and exercise the powers of 5 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Are there any questions
6 Region Executive -- excuse me -- Executive 6 for counsel on this matter?
7 Director of Entertainment for Marina District 7 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Yes.
8 Development Company, LLC, pending plenary 8 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No.
9 qualification. 9 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: So she won't be
10 This matter was initiated by Petition 10 living in Atlantic City; correct?
11 PRN 1242603 dated May 6. Again, Joint Petition 11 MR. FISHER: That's correct. She
12 of Marina District Development Company, LLC, and 12 resides in Virginia.
13 its parent company MGM to have Miss Whitman to 13 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: And we all know
14 begin to serve as Executive Director of 14  what is coming down the pike for these casinos
15 Entertainment for MDDC. 15 that are in New York. Is that going to help --
16 You have same counsel present to address 16 is that going to hurt our casinos in Atlantic
17 this matter, and I ask with your permission that 17 City in any way?
18 they enter their appearances and procedure. 18 MR. FISHER: Respectfully, I do not
19 MR. FISHER: Good morning again, 19 think so. Her position at the Borgata will
20 Chairman and Commissioners. CJ Fisher, partner 20 entail bolstering the entertainment department at
21 with Fox Rothschild, appearing on behalf of 21 the property and helping develop the staff, the
22 Marina District Development Company, LLC, doing 22 entertainment staff at the Borgata, which I think
23 business as Borgata Hotel and Casino & Spa and 23 will ultimately be beneficial for the property
24 MGM Resorts International. 24 and for Atlantic City and for the State.
25 MS. DeARAUJO: Good morning, Chairman 25 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: You going to
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2 and Commissioners. Paulina DeAraujo, Deputy 2 keep our casinos intact in Atlantic City.
3 Attorney General, on behalf of Division of Gaming 3 MR. FISHER: We're going to do our best.
4 Enforcement. 4 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Okay. Thank
5 MR. FISHER: Before you is Borgata and 5 you.
6 MGM's Joint Petition requesting the temporary 6 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Any other questions for
7 qualification of Christine Whitman to assume the 7 counsel?
8 duties and exercise the powers of Executive 8 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir.
9 Director of Entertainment for the Borgata and 9 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, is there a
10 also requesting the issuance of a temporary 10 motion?
11 casino key employee license to Miss Whitman and a 11 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes, sir. Thank
12 waiver of the residency requirement for Miss 12 you, Mr. Chairman.
13 Whitman. 13 I reviewed the draft resolution, the
14 I have reviewed the draft resolution and 14 Petition, memo of counsel, the presentation, and
15 have no objections to its form or substance and 15 at this time I move to approve the Petition,
16 would respectfully request that the Commission 16 issue a temporary casino key employee license to
17 approve the resolution and grant temporary 17 Christine L. Whitman pursuant to NJSA
18 qualification and a temporary casino key employee 18 5:12-89b(4), NJSA 5:12-89(e), and NJAC 19:41A-5.3
19 license to Miss Whitman and waive the residency 19 and permit her to assume the duties and exercise
20 requirement. 20 the powers of Executive Director of
21 Thank you. 21 Entertainment -- excuse me -- for Marina District
22 MS. DeARAUJO: The Division submitted a 22 Development Company, LLC, pending plenary
23 response dated May 6th of no objection to the 23 qualification. That's in accordance with the
24 temporary casino key employee licensure with 24 conditions contained in NJSA 5:12-85.1 and NJAC
25 residency waiver to Miss Whitman. 25 13:69C-2.6 and 2.7; and further grant the
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2 Petitioners, plural, request waiver residency 2 Enforcement.
3 requirement as provided for in NJAC 5:12-89b(4). 3 MS. FAUNTLEROY: One second. Mr.
4 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Is there a second? 4 Muskett, do you have camera capabilities?
5 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Mr. Chairman, I 5 MR. MUSKETT: I do not this morning.
6 second the motion. 6 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Okay. Your permission
7 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Any further discussion? 7 to proceed, Mr. Chairman?
8 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir. 8 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Proceed, please.
9 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, roll call 9 MR. MUSKETT: Okay. Ireviewed the
10 vote? 10 resolution concerning the initial key employee
11 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Commissioner Formica? 11 license and plenary qualification of Miss --
12 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes. 12 Patricia Rocco to serve as Vice President of
13 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Vice Chair Mollineaux? 13 Human Resources pending full licensure.
14 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Yes. 14 With that being understood, I have no
15 MS. FAUNTLEROY: And Chairman Plousis? 15 objection to form and substance to the
16 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Yes. 16 resolution, and I would respectfully ask on
17 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Thank you. 17 behalf of Ocean Casino Resort and Miss Patricia
18 MR. FISHER: Thank you. 18 Rocco that the resolution be approved as written.
19 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Thank you. 19 Thank you for your consideration.
20 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Item No. 12 is the 20 MS. FERTAKOS: Thank you.
21 Petition of AC Ocean Walk, LLC, d/b/a Ocean 21 The Division filed its response dated
22 Casino Resorts, for the issuance of a temporary 22 May 4th of no objection to the temporary casino
23 casino key employee license to Patricia Rocco 23 key employee licensure and qualification for
24 pursuant to NJSA 5:12-89(e) and to permit her to 24 Patricia Rocco.
25 assume the duties and exercise the powers of Vice 25 The Division has also reviewed the draft
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2 President of Human Resources for AC Ocean Walk, 2 resolution and has no objections.
3 LLC, pending plenary qualification. 3 Thank you.
4 This matter was initiated -- this matter 4 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Are there any questions
5 was initiated by Petition -- e-petition PRN 5 for counsel on this matter?
6 1053602 dated April 15, 2026, by casino licensee 6 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir.
7 AC Ocean Walk, LLC, seeking the ruling as 7 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: No.
8 indicated for Patricia Rocco's temporary 8 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, is there a
9 qualifications to serve as Vice President, Human 9 motion?
10 Resources for AC Ocean Walk as well as temporary 10 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes, sir. Thank
11 casino key employee licensure. 11 you, Mr. Chairman.
12 You have counsel for the licensee via 12 I reviewed the draft resolution,
13 Zoom and counsel for the Division present. And 13 Division's response, memo of General Counsel, the
14 with your permission I ask that they both enter 14 Petition. At this point I move to approve the
15 their appearances and direct to the Commission 15 Petition and issue a casino key employee license
16 directly. 16 to Patricia Rocco pursuant to NJAC 5:12-89b(4),
17 MR. MUSKETT: Thank you, Dianna. 17 NISA 5:12-89(¢), and NJAC 19:41A-5.3, and permit
18 Good morning, Chairman Plousis, Vice 18 her assume the duties and exercise the powers of
19 Chair Mollineaux, and Commissioner Formica. I am 19 Vice President, Human Resources for AC Ocean
20 Joseph Muskett, Senior Vice President and General 20 Walk, LLC, pending plenary qualification in
21 Counsel for AC Ocean Walk, LLC, doing business as 21 accordance with the conditions contained in NJSA
22 Ocean Casino Resort. 22 5:12-85.1 and NJAC 13:69C-2.6.
23 MS. FERTAKOS: Good morning, Chairman 23 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Is there a second?
24 and Commissioners. Ellen Fertakos, Deputy 24 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Mr. Chairman, I
25 Attorney General, for the Division of Gaming 25 second the motion.
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2 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Any further discussion? 2 doing business as Hard Rock Hotel & Casino
3 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: No. 3 Atlantic City and HR Atlantic City, LLC.
4 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir. 4 MS. DeARAUJO: Good morning, Chairman
5 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, roll call 5 and Commissioners. Paulina DeAraujo, Deputy
6 vote? 6 Attorney General, on behalf of Division of Gaming
7 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Commissioner Formica? 7 Enforcement.
8 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes. 8 MS. HORNER: I have reviewed the draft
9 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Vice Chair Mollineaux? 9 resolution and respectfully request that you
10 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Yes. 10 grant the initial casino -- casino key employee
11 MS. FAUNTLEROY: And Chairman Plousis? 11 license with multi-casino endorsement and plenary
12 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Yes. 12 qualification for Jon Paul Morosky to permit him
13 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Thank you. 13 to continue to serve as Vice President of Table
14 MS. FERTAKOS: Thank you. 14 Games for Boardwalk 1000, LLC, and HR Atlantic
15 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Thank you. 15 City, LLC.
16 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Okay. Mr. Chairman, 16 MS. DeARAUJO: The Division submitted a
17 I'm going to ask for one more deviation. Since 17 report dated May 5th, 2026, of no objection to
18 the remainder of the agenda is one counsel, I 18 the initial casino key employee licensure with a
19 would ask with your permission to call Agenda 19 multi-casino endorsement and qualification of Jon
20 Item 19. Yes? 20 Morosky.
21 That is consideration of the initial 21 The Division has also reviewed the draft
22 casino key employee licensure with a multi-casino 22 resolution and has no objections.
23 endorsement and plenary qualification of John P. 23 Thank you.
24 Morosky to serve as Vice President of Table Games 24 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Are there any questions
25 for casino licensees Boardwalk 1000, LLC, d/b/a 25 for counsel to this matter?
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2 Hard Rock hotel & Casino Atlantic City and HR 2 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir.
3 Atlantic City, LLC. 3 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: No.
4 This matter was originally initiated by 4 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, is there a
5 e-petition PRN 2582502 dated September 11, 2025, 5 motion?
6 by casino licensee Boardwalk 1000, LLC, and its 6 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes, sir, thank
7 manager, casino licensee HR Atlantic City, LLC, 7 you, Mr. Chairman.
8 seeking permission for Jon Paul Morosky to assume 8 I've reviewed the draft resolution, the
9 the duties and exercise the powers the of Vice 9 Petition, memo of General Counsel, the voicing of
10 President of Table Games as well as temporary key 10 no objection taken, and the presentation of
11 employee licensure. 11 counsel. At this time I move to adopt the draft
12 You granted that petition at your 12 resolution, grant an initial casino key employee
13 October 8, 2025, public meeting. And that is as 13 license to Jon Morosky pursuant to NJSA 5:12-89,
14 reflected in Commission Resolution No. 14 NJAC 19:41A-5.3. Itis with multi-casino
15 25-10-10-85. 15 endorsement pursuant to NJSA 5:12-91.1. And find
16 Now before you is initial casino key 16 Mr. Morosky qualified to serve as Vice President
17 employee licensure and plenary qualification. 17 of Table Games for Boardwalk 1000, LLC, and HR
18 You have counsel for the properties, 18 Atlantic City LLC, in accordance with NJSA
19 Nanette Horner via Zoom, and counsel for the 19 5:12-85.1 and NJAC 13:69C-2.6.
20 Division is present. And with your permission, I 20 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Is there a second?
21 ask they enter their appearances and proceed 21 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Mr. Chairman, I
22 directly. 22 second the motion.
23 MS. HORNER: Good morning, Chairman and 23 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Any further discussion?
24 Commissioners. Nanette Horner. I am Vice 24 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir.
25 President, General Counsel for Boardwalk 1000, 25 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: No.
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2 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, roll call 2 Enterprise Analytics for Caesars Entertainment
3 vote? 3 Inc., the parent company of the Atlantic City
4 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Commissioner Formica? 4 casino licensee.
5 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes. 5 We have reviewed re the report, the
6 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Vice Chair Mollineaux? 6 draft resolution, have no comments, and would ask
7 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Yes. 7 that you approve same.
8 MS. FAUNTLEROY: And Chairman Plousis? 8 Thank you.
9 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Yes. 9 MS. DeARAUJO: The Division submitted a
10 MS. HORNER: Thank you. 10 response dated May 4th, 2026, of no objection to
11 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Thank you, counsel. 11 the temporary qualification of Mr. Wolkoff.
12 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Thank you. 12 The Division also reviewed the draft
13 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Item No. 13 is a joint 13 resolution and has no objections.
14 petition of Caesars Entertainment Inc., Harrah's 14 Thank you.
15 Atlantic City Operating Company, LLC, Boardwalk 15 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Are there any questions
16 Regency, LLC, Tropicana Atlantic City Corp., and 16 for counsel on this matter?
17 Caesars Interactive Entertainment New Jersey, 17 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir.
18 LLC, requesting permission for David Wolkoff to 18 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: No.
19 assume the duties and exercise the powers of 19 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, is there a
20 Senior Vice President, Enterprise Analytics for 20 motion?
21 Caesars Entertainment Inc., pending plenary 21 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes, sir. Thank
22 qualification. 22 you, Mr. Chairman.
23 This matter was initiated by Joint 23 I reviewed the Joint Petition, the draft
24 Petition PRN 0972602 dated April 7, 2026, by each 24 resolution, the memo of General Counsel, the
25 of the casino licensees as well as internet 25 Division's voice of no objection, and move to
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2 gaming affiliate that was identified seeking the 2 adopt the draft resolution, authorize David
3 permission of the Commission to have Mr. Wolkoff 3 Wolkoff on a temporary basis and prior to his
4 temporarily qualified to serve in the capacity 4 plenary qualification to assume the duties and
5 indicated. 5 exercise the powers of Senior Vice President,
6 You have counsel for the properties 6 Enterprise Analytics, for Caesars Entertainment,
7 present as well as counsel for the Division. And 7 Incorporated, pending plenary qualification. And
8 with your permission, I ask that they enter their 8 that is subject to the conditions contains in
9 appearances and proceed. 9 NJSA 5:12-85.1 and NJAC 13:69C-2.7.
10 MR. AGNELLINIL: Good morning, Chairman, 10 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Is there a second?
11 members of the Commission. Pacifico Agnellini 11 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Mr. Chairman, I
12 from Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck on behalf of 12 second the motion.
13 Caesars Entertainment Inc., Harrah's Atlantic 13 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Any further discussion?
14 City Operating Company, LLC, Boardwalk Regency, 14 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: No.
15 LLC, Tropicana Atlantic City Corp., Caesars 15 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir.
16 Interactive Entertainment New Jersey, LLC, and 16 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, roll call
17 Mr. Wolkoft. 17 vote?
18 MS. DeARAUJO: Good morning, Chairman 18 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Commissioner Formica?
19 and Commissioners. Paulina DeAraujo, Deputy 19 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes.
20 Attorney General, on behalf of the Division of 20 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Vice Chair Mollineaux?
21 Gaming Enforcement. 21 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Yes.
22 MR. AGNELLINIL: Before you today is a 22 MS. FAUNTLEROY: And Chairman Plousis?
23 petition seeking the temporary qualification of 23 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Yes.
24 Mr. Wolkoff to allow him to assume the duties and 24 MR. AGNELLINI: Thank you.
25 exercise the powers of Senior Vice President 25 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Thank you.

ROSENBERG & ASSOCIATES, INC.

(800) 662-6878

www.rosenbergandassociates.com




70 72
1 ITEM NO. 14 1 ITEM NO. 14
2 Item No. 14 is the Joint Petition of 2 The Division has reviewed are the draft
3 Caesars Entertainment Inc., Harrah's Atlantic 3 resolution and has no objections.
4 City Operating Company, LLC, Boardwalk Regency, 4 Thank you.
5 LLC, Tropicana Atlantic City Corp., and Caesars 5 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Are there any questions
6 Interactive Entertainment New Jersey, LLC, 6 for counsel on this matter?
7 requesting permission for Zachary Zarnoch to 7 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Yes. Has there
8 assume the duties and exercise the powers of 8 been any money laundering in Caesars?
9 Senior Vice President Anti-Money Laundering 9 MR. AGNELLINI: No. Not that I'm aware
10 Compliance for Caesars Entertainment Inc., 10 of. I'm sure there have been attempts at times,
11 pending his plenary qualification. 11 but not that I'm aware of.
12 This matter was initiated by Petition 12 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Okay.
13 PRN 0972603 dated April 7, 2026, by the casino 13 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Any other questions?
14 licensees as well as internet gaming affiliates 14 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes. Mr.
15 that I identified, and the parent company that I 15 Agnellini, I see that Mr. Zarnoch has a JD from
16 identified, seeking the temporary qualification 16 Pitt. He's a lawyer?
17 of Mr. Zarnoch for the position indicated. 17 MR. AGNELLINI: I -- from -- my
18 Again you have counsel present, and [ 18 understanding is that he -- he -- he is. 1 don't
19 ask that they enter their appearances and 19 know if he's currently --
20 proceed. 20 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: All right.
21 MR. AGNELLINI: Good morning, Chair, 21 MR. AGNELLINI: -- licensed to practice
22 members of the Commission. 22 anywhere.
23 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Good morning. 23 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: I thought that
24 MR. AGNELLINI: Pacifico Agnellini, 24 was cool. We could all be lawyers together.
25 Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck, on behalf of 25 MR. AGNELLINI: Yes. It's a good
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2 Caesars Entertainment, Inc., Atlantic City -- I'm 2 background for the --
3 sorry -- Harrah's Atlantic City Operating 3 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yeah. It sounds
4 Company, LLC, Boardwalk Regency, LLC, Tropicana 4 like it.
5 Atlantic City Corp., Caesars Interactive 5 MR. AGNELLINI: -- money laundering.
6 Entertainment New Jersey, LLC, and Mr. Zarnoch. 6 So --
7 MS. DeARAUJO: Good morning, Chairman 7 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Any other questions for
8 and Commissioners. Paulina DeAraujo, Deputy 8 counsel?
9 Attorney General, on behalf of the Division of 9 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir.
10 Gaming Enforcement. 10 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, is there a
11 MR. AGNELLINI: Before you today is a 11 motion?
12 petition again secking the temporary 12 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes, sir. Thank
13 qualification of Mr. Zach Zarnoch to allow him to 13 you, Mr. Chairman.
14 assume the duties and exercise the powers of 14 Again, I reviewed the Petition, memo of
15 Senior Vice President, Anti-Money Laundering 15 General Counsel, draft resolution, the Division's
16 Compliance for Caesars Entertainment, Inc., the 16 voice of no objection. I move to adopt the draft
17 parent company of the New Jersey casino 17 resolution, authorize Zach Zarnoch on a temporary
18 licensees. 18 basis and prior to his plenary qualification to
19 We have reviewed the report, reviewed 19 assume the duties and exercise the powers of
20 the draft resolution, have no comments, and would 20 Senior Vice President AML Compliance for Caesars
21 ask that you approve same. 21 Entertainment, Inc., pending plenary
22 Thank you. 22 qualification and this subject to the conditions
23 MS. DeARAUJO: The Division submitted a 23 contained in NJSA 5:12-85.1 and NJAC 13:69C-2.7.
24 response dated April 27th, 2026, of no objection 24 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Is there a second?
25 to the temporary qualification of Mr. Zarnoch. 25 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Mr. Chairman, I
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2 second the motion. 2 as the Vice President and Assistant General
3 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Any further discussion? 3 Manager for Boardwalk Regency, LLC. Here in
4 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir. 4 Atlantic City.
5 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: No. 5 MS. DeARAUJO: The Division submitted a
6 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, roll call 6 report dated April 14th, 2026, of no objection to
7 vote? 7 the initial casino key employee licensure and
8 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Commissioner Formica? 8 qualification of Mr. Davis.
9 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes. 9 The Division has also reviewed the draft
10 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Vice Chair Mollineaux? 10 resolution and has no objections.
11 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Yes. 11 Thank you.
12 MS. FAUNTLEROY: And Chairman Plousis? 12 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Are there any questions
13 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Yes. 13 for counsel on this matter?
14 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Item No. 15 is 14 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: No.
15 consideration of the initial casino key employee 15 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Mr. --
16 licensure and plenary qualification of Edward M. 16 MR. AGNELLINI: Yes?
17 Davis to serve as Vice President and Assistant 17 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: -- Agnellini?
18 General Manager for Boardwalk Regency, LLC, d/b/a 18 Local guy. Nice to see; right?
19 Caesars Atlantic City. 19 MR. AGNELLINI: Uh-hum. Yes.
20 This matter was originally initiated by 20 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Stockton,
21 Petition PRN 2322501 dated August 19, 2025, 21 Pinelands.
22 seeking your temporary casino key employee 22 MR. AGNELLINI: Yes.
23 licensure -- issuance of a temporary key license 23 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Great. That's
24 and temporary qualification to Mr. Davis to serve 24 all I got.
25 as Vice President and AGM of Caesars Atlantic 25 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Is there a motion?
75 77
1 ITEM NO. 15 1 ITEM NO. 15
2 City. 2 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes, sir. Mr.
3 You considered that petition at your 3 Chairman, thank you.
4 September 10, 2025, public meeting, granted the 4 I reviewed the Petition, the draft
5 request as is reflected in Commission Resolution 5 resolution, the memo of General Counsel. Hearing
6 25-09-10-14. 6 no objection from the Division, at this time I
7 The Division has now completed its 7 move to adopt the draft resolution, grant an
8 plenary investigation. It is now before you for 8 initial key -- casino key employee license to
9 initial casino key employee licensure and plenary 9 Edward Davis pursuant to NJAC 5:12-89, find Mr.
10 qualification. 10 Davis qualified to serve as Vice President and
11 Counsel is present, and with your 11 Assistant General Manager for Boardwalk Regency,
12 permission, I ask that they again enter their 12 LLC, in accordance with NJSA 5:12-85.1 and NJAC
13 appearances on this matter and proceed. 13 13:69C-2.6.
14 MR. AGNELLINI: Good morning, Chair, 14 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Is there a second?
15 members of the Commission. Pacifico Agnellini on 15 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Mr. Chairman, I
16 behalf -- of Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck on 16 second the motion.
17 behalf of Boardwalk Regency, LLC, and Mr. Davis. 17 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Any further discussion?
18 MS. DeARAUJO: Good morning, Chairman 18 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir.
19 and Commissioners. Paul DeAraujo, Deputy 19 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, roll call
20 Attorney General, on behalf of the Division of 20 vote?
21 Gaming Enforcement. 21 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Commissioner Formica?
22 MR. AGNELLINI: Before you today is a 22 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes.
23 petition seeking the issuance of an initial 23 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Vice Chair Mollineaux?
24 casino key employee license and plenary 24 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Yes.
25 qualification of Mr. Davis to allow him to serve 25 MS. FAUNTLEROY: And Chairman Plousis?
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2 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Yes. 2 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir.
3 MR. AGNELLINI: Thank you. 3 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, is there a
4 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Item No. 16 is the 4 motion?
5 Petition of Tropicana Atlantic City Corp., d/b/a 5 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes, sir. Thank
6 Tropicana Atlantic City, for the issuance of a 6 you.
7 temporary casino key employee license to Kathleen 7 It looks like another local success
8 McMunn pursuant to NJSA 5:12-89(e) and to permit 8 story, Mr. Agnellini.
9 her to assume the duties and exercise the powers 9 I reviewed the Petition, the memo of
10 of Director of Hotel Operations for Tropicana 10 General Counsel, the draft resolution, no
11 Atlantic City Corp. pending plenary 11 objection raised by the Division, and I move to
12 qualification. 12 approve the Petition and issue a temporary casino
13 This matter was initiated by Petition 13 key employee license to Kathleen McMunn pursuant
14 PRN 1192608 dated April 29, 2026, by Tropicana 14 to NJSA 5:12-89(e) and permit her to assume the
15 AC, requesting permission for Kathleen McMunn to 15 duties and exercise the powers of Director of
16 assume the Director of Hotel Operations position 16 Hotel Operations for Tropicana Atlantic City
17 as well as temporary casino key employee 17 Corporation pending plenary qualification and in
18 licensure. 18 accordance with the conditions contained in NJSA
19 Again we have counsel present. And I 19 5:12-85.1 and NJAC 13:69C-2.6.
20 ask that they enter their appearances and proceed 20 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Is there a second?
21 directly. 21 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Yes. Mr.
22 MR. AGNELLINI: Good morning. Chairman, 22 Chairman.
23 members of the Commission. Pacifico Agnellini, 23 I also want to say that it's good to see
24 Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck, on behalf of 24 someone move up in the steps that she's taking to
25 Tropicana Atlantic City Corp. and Ms. McMunn. 25 where she's going.
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2 MS. DeARAUJO: Good morning, Chairman 2 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yeah.
3 and Commissioners. Paulina DeAraujo, Deputy 3 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: That -- that is
4 Attorney General, on behalf of Division of Gaming 4 great. I second the motion.
5 Enforcement. 5 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Roll call vote?
6 MR. AGNELLINI: Before you today is a 6 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Commissioner Formica?
7 petition seeking the issuance of a temporary 7 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes.
8 casino key employee license and temporary 8 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Vice Chair Mollineaux?
9 qualification of Kathleen McMunn to allow her to 9 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Yes.
10 assume the duties and exercise the powers of 10 MS. FAUNTLEROY: And Chairman Plousis?
11 Director of Hotel Operations for Tropicana 11 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Yes.
12 Atlantic City Corp. 12 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Item No. 18 is the
13 We have reviewed the draft resolution. 13 consideration of the initial casino key employee
14 We have reviewed the report. We have no comments 14 license and plenary qualification of Shane Q.
15 and would ask that you approve same. 15 Thompson to serve as Vice President of Strategic
16 Thank you. 16 Marketing and Analysis for Golden Nugget Atlantic
17 MS. DeARAUJO: The Division submitted a 17 City, LLC, d/b/a Golden Nugget Atlantic City.
18 response dated May 7, 2026, of no objection to 18 This matter was initiated by Petition
19 the temporary casino key employee licensure and 19 PRN --
20 temporary qualification of Miss McMunn. 20 That's okay.
21 The Division has reviewed the draft 21 -- PRN 3002502 dated October 24, 2025,
22 resolution and has no objections. 22 by casino licensee Golden Nugget Atlantic City,
23 Thank you. 23 LLC, doing business as Golden Nugget Atlantic
24 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Are there any questions 24 City to have Shane Quinn Thompson assume the
25 for counsel on this matter? 25 position of Vice President of Strategic Marketing
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2 and Analysis as well as the issuance of a 2 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes, sir. Thank
3 temporary key. 3 you, Mr. Chairman.
4 You considered that matter at your 4 This is awesome. Another local guy.
5 November 12, 2025, public meeting, granted the 5 I -- it's nice to see.
6 Petitioner's request, and that action was 6 I've reviewed the Petition, the memo of
7 reflected in Commission Resolution No. 7 General Counsel, draft resolution, the Division's
8 25-11-12-16. 8 voicing no objection, and move to adopt the draft
9 The Division has now created -- 9 resolution, grant an initial casino key employee
10 completed its plenary investigation, 10 license to Shane Q. Thompson, pursuant to NJSA
11 appropriately reported. And the matter is now 11 5:12-89 and to find Mr. Thompson qualified to
12 before you for initial casino key employee 12 serve as Vice President of Strategic Marketing
13 licensure and plenary qualification for Mr. 13 and Analysis for Golden Nugget Atlantic City,
14 Thompson. 14 LLC, in accordance with NJSA 5:12-85.1 and NJAC
15 Counsel is present, and I ask that they 15 13:69C-2.6.
16 enter their appearances on this matter and 16 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Is there a second?
17 proceed. 17 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Mr. Chairman, I
18 MR. AGNELLINI: Good morning, Chair, 18 second the motion.
19 members of the Commission. Pacifico Agnellini 19 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Any further discussion?
20 from Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck on behalf of 20 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir.
21 Golden Nugget Atlantic City LLC, and Mr. 21 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: No.
22 Thompson. 22 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, roll call
23 MS. DeARAUJO: Good morning, Chairman 23 vote?
24 and Commissioners. Paulina DeAraujo, Deputy 24 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Commissioner Formica?
25 Attorney General, on behalf of Division of Gaming 25 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes.
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2 Enforcement. 2 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Vice Chair Mollineaux?
3 MR. AGNELLINI: Before you today is a 3 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Yes.
4 petition seeking the issuance of an initial 4 MS. FAUNTLEROY: And Chairman Plousis?
5 casino key employee license and plenary 5 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Yes.
6 qualification of Mr. Shane Thompson to serve as 6 MR. AGNELLINI: Thank you.
7 the Vice President of Strategic Marketing and 7 MS. DeARAUJO: Thank you.
8 Analysis for Golden Nugget Atlantic City, LLC. 8 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Thank you.
9 We've reviewed the draft resolution and 9 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Thank you.
10 the report. We have no comment, and we would ask 10 In accordance with Resolution
11 that you approve same. 11 25-12-10-03, the next closed session shall be
12 Thank you. 12 held on Wednesday, June 10, 2026, at 9:30 a.m. in
13 MS. DeARAUIJO: The Division submitted a 13 the Commission offices.
14 report dated May 4th, 2026, of no objection to 14 CHAIR PLOUSIS: This is the public
15 the initial casino key employee licensure and 15 participation portion of the meeting.
16 qualification of Mr. Thompson. 16 Is there anyone from the public that
17 The Division has also reviewed the draft 17 wishes to speak?
18 resolution and has no objections. 18 Sir, please come forward and identify
19 Thank you. 19 yourself please.
20 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Are there any questions 20 MR. PADULA: Good morning,
21 for counsel? 21 Commissioners.
22 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: No, sir. 22 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Good morning.
23 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: No. 23 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Good morning.
24 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Hearing none, is there a 24 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Sir, the mic in the
25 motion? 25 middle.
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2 MR. PADULA: Sure. 2 That company then distributes those gratuities to
3 Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Madame Vice 3 its employees. How that's done, I have no
4 Chair, and Commissioner. My name is Mark Padula. 4 knowledge, nor do any of my coworkers, some of
5 I'm an Atlantic City resident and -- a longtime 5 which are logged in today. They are not here
6 Atlantic City resident and an online dealer here 6 presently because of fear for reprisals from the
7 in the city. 7 company I work for. I'm an old man. I'm at the
8 I come before you today to seek your 8 end of my career so I can afford to lose my job
9 possible assistance and to make you aware of a 9 if necessary. It's that important to all of us
10 situation that we are experiencing as online 10 that work there. There is no exception to any
11 dealers -- as licensed online dealers, here in 11 one of the thousand employees that work at the
12 Atlantic City. 12 company that I work for. It's a great deal of
13 As you may know, in a land-based casino, 13 people who are affected by this.
14 gratuities are given at the table. They are then 14 So we ask your cooperation if Senator
15 placed into a box on the table by a dealer. And 15 Polistina's office should reach out to you or the
16 then those tips are collected by other dealers 16 Division of Gaming Enforcement to correct this
17 and placed in a central box in the middle of the 17 problem and to allow complete transparency as to
18 pit. At the end of the shift, dealers come and 18 what we're making, how it's distributed, and who
19 take those gratuities and bring them to a crap 19 receives what. We have no knowledge of anything.
20 table to count the gratuities. That is all done 20 So, for instance, if Golden Nugget were
21 by the dealers with supervision of security and 21 to hire this company, they would receive the tip
22 surveillance. Management is not involved in that 22 because they are responsible for the loss and the
23 in any way. 23 win at the table. They then forward the tip to
24 There's complete transparency for the 24 the company I work for, and then that company
25 dealers because they are the ones that handle the 25 disburses the money. We have no knowledge of
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2 process. They also have the knowledge of what 2 what came in. We have no knowledge of what went
3 their paycheck might be at the end of the week 3 to our company. And we have no knowledge as to
4 based on the gratuities that are collected in any 4 how it's distributed. So we wanted to make you
5 given week. And it can differ week to week, day 5 aware of that today, and that's the purpose of my
6 by day. Based on the graciousness of the 6 appearance today.
7 customers and the ability of the dealer to 7 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Well, we do have the
8 collect the tips. As an online dealer, I'm not 8 Director of the Division of Gaming Enforcement on
9 afforded that same transparency. 9 the line as we speak, and you have
10 Now, I understand that the Casino 10 representatives here.
11 Control Commission is not the venue and is not 11 Just for clarification, do you get tips
12 the legislative process. We're going to seek 12 now --
13 assistance from Senator Polistina's office as 13 MR. PADULA: Yes, I do.
14 well as the Division of Gaming Enforcement. As 14 CHAIR PLOUSIS: -- from the company?
15 you also know, the Division does not permit 15 MR. PADULA: Yes, Mr. Chairman.
16 public appearances. So I come before you today 16 CHAIR PLOUSIS: You do get them.
17 justto seek your assistance and possibly make 17 MR. PADULA: Yes.
18 you aware that as an online dealer, when a 18 CHAIR PLOUSIS: You're questioning
19 gratuity is received from a customer, it is then 19 whether that's a valid number.
20 given to the vendor that hires the company that 20 MR. PADULA: We want clarity. I'm not
21 employs me. Of which I want to remain -- I'm not 21 questioning anyone's integrity at all. We want
22 going to mention the company at this time. 22 clarity as to what comes in. Just the same
23 That vendor then takes the gratuities 23 clarity that's afforded the land-based casinos.
24 and submits them to the company that works for 24 The land-based casinos know down to the penny
25 them and provides the online dealing services. 25 what they're making. We have no knowledge. Ifa
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2 thousand dollar tip comes in, say I earn that 2 There's no currency. Nothing.
3 thousand dollar tip, it then goes to Hard Rock or 3 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: I'm not
4 Golden Nugget or Caesars, and then it's forwarded 4 challenging you. But the only thing I can
5 to my employer who then takes that money and 5 analogize it to is when I go out to dinner and
6 distributes it at will. We have no knowledge of 6 use my credit card and I add that tip, that's how
7 anything that comes in, where it goes, and how 7 I -- that's an electronic footprint.
8 it's distributed. 8 MR. PADULA: Exactly.
9 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: And this has 9 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: That is
10 been going on for how long now? 10 undisputed.
11 MR. PADULA: Since the inception of 11 MR. PADULA: Yes.
12 online gaming. And it should be corrected. The 12 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: So you're saying
13 problem is that any employee who has questioned 13 you don't see that?
14 it in the past... 14 MR. PADULA: That is correct. We don't
15 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: I gotcha. 15 see any of that. So a very simple solution to it
16 MR. PADULA: Yeah. So with that said, 16 would be to put a toke board up. And every time
17 we're going to seek the legislative process to 17 a tip is dropped, the toke board goes up. I
18 correct it. 18 mean, they have computers for everything. So
19 Now, I understand that online gaming was 19 that would be a very simple solution so that the
20 really shoved down our throats, and it happened 20 dealers have knowledge as to what came in. And
21 very quickly, and there was really maybe not time 21 we have no knowledge of how it's distributed. Is
22 to legislate the process. But because so many 22 it paid to bonuses? Is it paid for training? Is
23 people are affected by it, and they rely on their 23 it paid for dealing? We don't know. As online
24 jobs for their living and come in -- and [ have a 24 dealers we're seeking that clarity.
25 lot of respect for my coworkers. They are 25 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: You say there's
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2 honest, good, hard-working people. They really 2 an intermediary company between you and the
3 are. All very young. Maybe not as knowledge as 3 casino that runs this on --
4 Iam. I've been around the block a few times. 4 MR. PADULA: Yeah. Currently there are
5 But they work hard and they should at least be 5 two in Atlantic City that I'm aware of. However,
6 afforded the opportunity to know what they're 6 some of the properties have now -- seek to do
7 making and how it's being received. 7 away with the intermediate company and are doing
8 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Sir, I'm sorry. 8 it themselves. I know Hard Rock is in the
9  What's your last name again? 9  process of setting up their own studio. Golden
10 MR. PADULA: Padula. 10 Nugget had their own in the past. I'm not sure
11 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Could you spell 11 if they still do. But that -- that serves as
12 that please? 12 another problem as well. The fact that the
13 MR. PADULA: P-a-d-u-l-a. 13 money's coming from a third party.
14 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Sir, I'm Mario 14 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Well, goes to my
15 Formica. Before I was a Commissioner, 20 years 15 next question. I'm sure they charge the casino a
16 ago, I worked on the crap tables for 20 years. I 16 service for their service. Do they cut into your
17 counted tokes so I certainly know what you're 17 tips? Do you know?
18 talking about. But here's what I'm a little 18 MR. PADULA: Again, no knowledge of that
19 confused about. I'm listening to what you're 19 whatsoever. We have -- we have no knowledge as
20 saying. So you're an online dealer. How -- how 20 to what is done with the tip money, if anything
21 do people make bets? Electronically? 21 is taken out of it. If management is paid for
22 MR. PADULA: Yes. There's no money at 22 it, if part of the contract is paid with it. We
23 the table whatsoever. 23 have no knowledge. We believe that the same
24 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Right. 24 courtesies that are afforded the land-based
25 MR. PADULA: So there's no chips. 25 casinos -- they have no one that takes their tips
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2 and no one that cuts into -- should be afforded 2 you hear me?
3 to online dealers as well. 3 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Yes. We can. Loud and
4 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Thank you, sir. 4 clear.
5 MR. PADULA: Thank you. 5 MS. FLAHERTY: Okay. Great.
6 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: And Mr. Mark? 6 I thank you, Mr. Chairman and the
7 We do appreciate you coming here and alerting us 7 commissioners, for the opportunity to speak
8 on what is happening. Otherwise, we wouldn't 8 today. I wish to express the feelings of myself
9 have. And it does always take one person to 9 and the entire Division of Gaming Enforcement
10 speak up for a whole group. So I do appreciate 10 with regard to Evan's very untimely passing.
11 you coming here and letting us know what is going 11 Evan started with the Division on June
12 on because we had never have known that. 12 3, 2024, and he was employed with the Attorney
13 MR. PADULA: Madame Chairman, I 13 General's Office by its Division of Gaming
14 appreciate you affording me the opportunity. 14 Enforcement as investigator. I was happy that
15 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: You're welcome. 15 Evan was a state investigator with the Division
16 MR. PADULA: And I thank you. 16 and to have sworn him into that position. And I
17 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Well, thank you, 17 know that Evan's family was very proud of him on
18 sir. We appreciate your comments, and we'll take 18 that day as they were on every day.
19 it under advisement. 19 Evan worked in the Division's service
20 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Thank you. 20 industry licensing bureau and a gaming unit
21 MR. PADULA: Thank you so much. Have a 21 supervised by Administrator Patty LaBau under
22 good day. 22 Deputy Chief Ed Schroeder. Evan conducted
23 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: You too. 23 investigations regarding companies doing business
24 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Is there any electronic 24 with the Atlantic City casino industry.
25 comments? 25 Importantly, those companies included internet
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2 MS. FAUNTLEROY: No, there are not. 2 gaming and sports wagering operations, which now
3 CHAIR PLOUSIS: All right. Before we 3 account for more than 50 percent of the gaming
4 adjourn the meeting today, I'd like to make a 4 revenues in New Jersey.
5 comment on behalf of myself and the other 5 The investigations of gaming companies
6 commissioners. I'd like to take a moment to 6 are comprehensive and demanding as they are with
7 remember Evan Fauntleroy. 7 casinos. The entire corporate structure is
8 Evan passed away suddenly on April 2nd 8 reviewed, including holding intermediary,
9 at the age of 35. He was a remarkable young man 9 subsidiary operations, and the company's
10 and will be sorely missed by his family and 10 operations and financial matters are investigated
11 friends. He was son of our General Counsel and 11 from a licensing perspective to ensure the
12 dear friend Dianna Fauntleroy and her husband 12 highest levels of good character, honesty,
13 Judge Richard Fauntleroy and brother of Bradford 13 integrity, and finance wherewithal, as well as
14 Fauntleroy. He was a valued staff member and 14 the lack of any disqualifying negative
15 colleague at our sister agency the Division of 15 information. The work done by Evan ensured that
16 Gaming Enforcement. 16 the policies and requirements of the Casino
17 Please join me in a moment of silence in 17 Control Act were fulfilled in a critical
18 honor of Evan Fauntleroy. 18 licensure area.
19 (A moment of silence was observed.) 19 Evan was very well liked and thought of
20 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Thank you. 20 at the Division, and I know that the Division
21 Also on line we have the Director of the 21 staff considered Evan as a friend. We appreciate
22 Division of Gaming Enforcement, and she wanted to 22 the time that Evan was with us. Evan's passing
23 make some comments. 23 is a great loss to the Division, and he will be
24 Mary Jo Flaherty? 24 remembered and missed.
25 MS. FLAHERTY: Yes. Mr. Chairman, can 25 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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2 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Thank you for those kind 2 CERTIFICATE
3 words. 3
4 MS. FAUNTLEROY: Thank you. 4 LM. DARLENE ENGEL, a Certified Court Rﬁaporter
5 Mr. Chairman, if I can, I do want to 5 and Notary Pupllc Aof the State of New Jersey, c.ertlfy
i ) 6 that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript
6 say -- | was going to say, but I don't know if I 7 of the proceedings.
7 can get it out. The outpouring of love and 8
8 support from you, the entire Commission, all of 9 I further certify that I am neither attorney, of
9 my colleagues, Mary Jo, Former Director, and all 10 counsel for, nor related to or employed by any of the
10 of the Division staff has been truly -- has been 11 parties to the action; further that I am not a
11 truly uplifting and a source of strength. And I 12 relative or employee of any attorney or counsel
12 thank you. I thank you, from food, flowers, 13 fzmployed. in this case; nor am I financially interested
13 cards, words in a situation where no words could 14 in the action.
14 be found, you found them to provide support and 12
15 strength. 17
16 And on an upbeat, I think there's 18
17 actually a forest called Evan Fauntleroy Forest 19
18 because there were so many trees that were 200 e
19 donated in his memory. M. DARLENE ENGEL, CCR
20 So I thank you guys for the grace that 21 License No 30X10102300
21 you all provided me during this time. It's going 22
. . 23 Dated: May 17,2026
22 to be a long journey. But you've been an amazing .. .
) My Notary Commission Expires on
23 family, and thank you. 24 November 21, 2029
24 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Do we have motion to NJ ID No: 50117353
25 adjourn this meeting? 25
99
1
2 COMMISSIONER FORMICA: Yes, Mr.
3 Chairman. Thank you. I make a motion to adjourn
4 our public meeting.
5 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Do I have a second?
6 VICE CHAIR MOLLINEAUX: Mr. Chairman, I
7 second the motion.
8 CHAIR PLOUSIS: All in favor, say aye.
9 (Ayes.)
10 CHAIR PLOUSIS: Opposed?
11 (No response.)
12 CHAIR PLOUSIS: The meeting is now
13 adjourned.
14 (Public Meeting 26-05-13 was adjourned
15 at 11:56 a.m.)
16 - - -
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
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